**ORIGINAL**

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

\_\_\_\_\_  
Certiorari to York County  
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Alison R. Lee, Circuit Court Judge

\_\_\_\_\_  
Appellate Case No. 2016-001553  
\_\_\_\_\_

**RECEIVED**  
FEB 20 2019  
SC Court of Appeals

TREY A. WILLIAMS,

RESPONDENT,

v.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

PETITIONER.

\_\_\_\_\_  
**BRIEF OF PETITIONER**  
\_\_\_\_\_

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

J. BENJAMIN APLIN  
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General  
SC Bar No. 8729

Post Office Box 11549  
Columbia, SC 29211  
(803) 734-3727

**ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER**

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

\_\_\_\_\_

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

### I.

The post-conviction relief judge erred in finding Respondent satisfied his burden of proving that he did not properly waive his right to counsel.

### II.

The post-conviction relief judge erred in finding Respondent satisfied his burden of proving that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to raise the issue that his waiver of counsel was invalid where the issue had no reasonable likelihood of securing reversal on direct appeal.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### Procedural History

Respondent was indicted at the May 2010 term of the York County Grand Jury for criminal sexual conduct with a minor, first degree (2009-GS-46-2646). Erik Delaney, Esquire represented Respondent. On April 15-16, 2010, Respondent appeared before the Honorable John C. Hayes, III, for a pretrial hearing. During that hearing, Respondent informed Judge Hayes that he wanted to proceed to trial *pro se*. After a colloquy, Judge Hayes granted Respondent's request but appointed Mr. Delaney to serve as standby counsel. Respondent requested a bench trial, after Judge Hayes explained his right to a jury trial. On May 26, 2010, the day of trial, Respondent told Judge Hayes that he changed his mind and wanted a trial by jury. App. 23-24. However, Judge Hayes denied Respondent's motion to withdraw his waiver of a jury trial. App. 24. Respondent, appearing *pro se*, proceeded to a bench trial before Judge Hayes. Judge Hayes found Respondent guilty and sentenced him to imprisonment for thirty years.

Respondent filed a notice of appeal with the South Carolina Court of Appeals. Lanelle C. Durant, Esquire, of the South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense perfected the appeal. The Court of Appeals affirmed Respondent's conviction and sentence. State v. Williams, Op. No. 2013-UP-102 (S.C. Ct. App. filed March 13, 2013). The Remittitur was issued on April 3, 2013.

Respondent filed an Application for post-conviction relief on June 12, 2013. Respondent filed a return on or about September 13, 2013. The Honorable Alison R. Lee convened an evidentiary hearing on the application at the Moss Justice Center in York, South Carolina on November 18, 2014. Respondent was present and represented by Charles T. Brooks, III, Esquire. Petitioner was represented by Assistant Attorney General J. Rutledge Johnson, Esquire. By an Order signed July 14, 2016, and filed July 18, 2016, the PCR Court granted relief on the grounds

that Respondent did not waive his right to counsel and that Respondent's appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to raise the issue of whether Respondent validly waived his right to counsel. The State timely filed a Notice of Appeal and submitted its Petition for Writ of Certiorari on February 10, 2017. On March 7, 2017, Respondent filed its Return. This Court granted certiorari on November 26, 2018. This Brief of Petitioner follows.

#### Factual History

In February of 2009, Respondent had sexual intercourse with his six-year-old cousin ("Victim"). App. pp. 38, 40, 43, 44, 71-72, 86. At trial, Victim testified Respondent came behind her and put his penis into her vagina on multiple occasions. App. p. 38-40. Respondent would rub Victim's private parts with a white towel. App. p. 44.

Soon thereafter, Victim's mother noticed Victim was walking funny and was messing with her private parts. App. p. 89. Victim informed her mother that her, "private was burning." App. p. 38; App. p. 88. Victim's mother examined Victim's vaginal area and noticed a "heavy discharge." App. p. 89. When Victim was questioned by her mother, Victim told her about her sexual assault. App. p. 89.

On February 23, 2009, Victim's mother took her to the emergency room. App. pp. 49-50. Dr. Thomas Wilkins treated Victim. According to Dr. Wilkins, Victim's vaginal area was red and there was a small amount of blood present. App. p. 50. In Dr. Wilkins' experience, the presence of blood in the vaginal area of a child was consistent with sexual assault. App. p. 52.

In his defense, Respondent testified he was not guilty of first degree criminal sexual conduct with a minor, and he claimed he never committed a crime or anything related to a sexual act against anyone. App. p. 111.

## ARGUMENT

### I. The post-conviction relief judge erred in finding Respondent satisfied his burden of proving that he did not properly waive his right to counsel.

#### Relevant Facts

Prior to Respondent's trial, a hearing was held before Judge Hayes on April 15-16, 2010. Respondent was represented at the time by Eric Delaney (hereinafter "Counsel"). At this hearing, Respondent informed the trial court that he wished to have Counsel relieved, asking the trial court "Could I represent myself today? Could I be able to represent myself throughout my case today?" App. 5, ll. 22-23. Judge Hayes then had the following discussion with Respondent:

Trial Court: Well I would have to relieve Mr. Delaney and if you want to proceed by yourself and represent yourself you can't do half and half. You either have an attorney or you don't.

Respondent: Yes, sir.

Trial Court: And if I relieve your attorney then you don't have one. And that's dangerous because you're not an attorney and an attorney could be of a benefit to you. And of course you've got an attorney appointed to you at no expense to you. But you have a right to hire an attorney and you also have a right to waive your right to counsel and proceed on your own if you wish. What do you wish to do?

App. 5, l. 24 – 6 l. 11.

Judge Hayes continued the matter until the following day to give Respondent ample time to discuss matters with Counsel. The following day Counsel informed the trial court that Respondent still wished to proceed *pro se*. After discussing Respondent's right to an attorney, Judge Hayes asks Respondent if he would like to proceed *pro se*. App. 13, l. 4. After Respondent answered that he would like to proceed *pro se*, Judge Hayes appointed Counsel to serve as standby counsel during the trial. App. 13, ll. 6-8. Judge Hayes informed Respondent that Counsel

will sit behind him during the trial and Respondent can turn to him for questions on procedure as a resource. App. 13, ll. 9-16.

On May 26, 2010, Respondent proceeded to trial before Judge Hayes, who again asked Respondent if he wished to proceed *pro se*. App. 20, ll. 11-13. Judge Hayes then had the following discussion with Respondent:

Trial Court: You know you have a right to an attorney. I think I explained to you that before. An attorney could be of benefit to you and even though I have relieved and there is a danger in your representing yourself since you are not an attorney. You have waived your right to an attorney on the record before. But you are still between now and Wednesday if you wish to hire an attorney you of course could do that. You understand that?

Respondent: Yes, sir.

Trial Court: And do you understand you have a right to a trial by jury? That is you have a right to have twelve jurors picked impartially and have them seated and have them hear the case, have the case submitted to them; make an argument to them yourself. The State would have the right to make an argument. And then I will charge them on the law and they will then deliberate and determine whether or not the evidence was sufficient for them to find you guilty of this offense beyond a reasonable doubt. Do you understand you have all those rights?

Respondent: Yes, sir.

Trial Court: Do you have any questions about them?

Respondent: Yes, sir. So if I wanted, if I wanted an attorney I could get an attorney now?

Trial Court: You waived your right to have an appointed attorney. You can hire an attorney if you wish but I will tell you that you're going to trial, noticed for trial on Wednesday, so we have a jury downstairs, so you could be tried by a jury or without a jury. I'm told by Ms. Colton you talked about going forward on a bench trial without a jury but you are going to trial on Wednesday. But if you were to hire an attorney that attorney if they were willing to take the case that's fine, but you are going to trial either with or without an attorney.

App. 20, l. 14 – 21 l. 21.

Respondent informed the trial court that he wished to proceed with a bench trial. Respondent agreed that he understood that he had the right to argue his case, the right to confront the witnesses, the right to testify or remain silent, and to call his own witnesses. App. 22, ll. 6-10. During the trial, Respondent cross examined four of the State's five witnesses, called one witness of his own, and testified on his own behalf. After the bench trial, Respondent was found guilty as indicted.

At the PCR hearing, Respondent alleged that Counsel's performance was so ineffective that it caused him to proceed *pro se*. App. 192, ll. 21-24. Respondent testified that Counsel prevented him from making objections and advised him that he could not object to any testimony. App. 194, ll. 3-7. He further testified that he was never advised of any rules or procedures. App. 194, l. 22. Respondent then explained that disagreements with the allegations on his indictments caused him to relieve Counsel. Respondent agreed that Judge Hayes told him of the dangers of self-representation and he still chose to represent himself. App. 221, ll. 3-15. Respondent also agreed that he did not object to Judge Hayes allowing him to represent himself. App. 222, ll. 22-24.

During the PCR hearing, Counsel testified that when he was relieved, he sat with Respondent as standby counsel throughout the trial. App. 227, ll. 14-18. He testified that he did not raise any issue about Respondent's competency to go forward and represent himself. App. 227, ll. 19-21. He testified that before he was relieved, he "advised him to have a lawyer on these charges," "went over with him the danger of representing himself," and had these discussions in the holding cell. App. 228, ll. 3-5.

In response to an inquiry about whether Respondent understood the rules and the trial procedures, Counsel testified that Respondent did not seem to have many questions and "was

very meticulous about writing a lot of notes, questions he was going to ask in anticipation of these witnesses." App. 229, ll. 9-11. Counsel testified that at some point during the middle of the trial, Respondent voluntarily "just gave up and said he was not interested." App. 229, ll. 14-15.

Counsel reiterated on cross-examination that he did not see any competency issues with Respondent. App. 230, ll. 9-10. Again, he testified that he advised Respondent of the dangers of self-representation, including the potential penalties he was facing and certain trial issues such as the difficulty of cross examining doctors. App. 230, ll. 12-21. Counsel also testified that he advised Respondent against moving to relieve and told him on several occasions that it was not in his best interest to represent himself. App. 230, l. 24 – 231, l. 1; App. 233, ll. 4-5.

During the State's closing argument at the PCR hearing, the State argued that there was no objection made during trial concerning Respondent's competency and nothing presented at the PCR hearing regarding his competency, other than speculation. App. 235, l. 22 – 236, l. 5. The State also argued that any issue regarding ineffective assistance of appellate counsel should fail because nothing was preserved at trial for appellate review. App. 237, ll. 4-8.

The PCR Court found that the Trial Court did not specifically address the disadvantages of Respondent proceeding *pro se* and that Respondent did not have a sufficient background to understand these dangers. The PCR Court also found appellate counsel ineffective for failing to raise the issue of Respondent's waiver of counsel on direct appeal.

### **Discussion**

The PCR Court erred in finding that Respondent satisfied his burden of proving that he did not properly waive his right to counsel when he relieved Counsel and proceeded *pro se*. For the foregoing reasons, Petitioner would assert that there was no evidence to support the PCR Court's conclusion that Respondent did not properly waived his right to counsel as he was

informed of the dangers of self-representation by the judge and by Counsel and because there was no evidence presented that Respondent did not have sufficient background to understand the disadvantages of self-representation.

To establish a valid waiver of counsel, [an accused must] be (1) advised of his right to counsel; and (2) adequately warned of the dangers of self-representation. Bridwell v. State, 306 S.C. 518, 413 S.E.2d 30 (1992) (citing Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975)).

"The ultimate test of whether a defendant has made a knowing and intelligent waiver of the right to counsel is not the trial judge's advice, but the defendant's understanding." State v. McLauren, 349 S.C. 488, 493, 563 S.E.2d 346, 348 (Ct. App. 2002) (citing State v. Brewer, 328 S.C. 117, 119, 492 S.E.2d 97, 98 (1997)). If the trial judge fails to make a "specific inquiry . . . addressing the disadvantages of proceeding *pro se*, this Court will look to the record to determine whether petitioner had sufficient background or was apprised of his rights by some other source." Bridwell, 306 S.C. 518, 413 S.E.2d 30 (citing Prince v. State, 301 S.C. 422, 392 S.E.2d 462 (1990); Wroten v. State, 301 S.C. 293, 391 S.E.2d 575 (1990)).

In McLauren, the South Carolina Court of Appeals noted that courts have considered a list of factors "in determining if an accused had sufficient background to understand the disadvantages of self-representation[.]" 349 S.C. 488, 563 S.E.2d 346. These factors include:

1. The accused's age, educational background, and physical and mental health;
2. Whether the accused was previously involved in criminal trials;
3. Whether he knew of the nature of the charge and of the possible penalties;
4. Whether he was represented by counsel before trial or whether an attorney indicated to him the difficulty of self-representation in his particular case;
5. Whether he was attempting to delay or manipulate the proceedings;
6. Whether the court appointed stand-by counsel;
7. Whether the accused knew he would be required to comply with the rules of procedure at trial;
8. Whether he knew of legal challenges he could raise in defense to the charges against him;

9. Whether the exchange between the accused and the court consisted merely of *pro forma* answers to *pro forma* questions; and
10. Whether the accused's waiver resulted from either coercion or mistreatment.

McLauren, 349 S.C. 488, 494-95, 563 S.E.2d 346, 349 (citing State v. Cash, 309 S.C. 40, 43, 419 S.E.2d 811, 813 (Ct. App. 1992)).

In this case, the entire record supports the conclusion that Respondent made a knowing and intelligent waiver of counsel. Respondent moved to have Counsel relieved and Judge Hayes explained that he had the right to counsel and that it would be dangerous to proceed *pro se* because Respondent was not an attorney. He explained that it would benefit him to have an attorney but he could proceed *pro se* if he so desired. Judge Hayes then continued the case to the following day to allow Respondent sufficient time to discuss his decision to proceed *pro se* with Counsel. The following day, Judge Hayes again went over Respondent's right to counsel and that having an attorney would benefit him and proceeding without an attorney would be dangerous since Respondent is not an attorney. Finally, at Respondent's insistence, Judge Hayes granted Respondent's request to relieve Counsel and appointed Counsel to sit as standby counsel.

Immediately prior to trial, Judge Hayes again inquired about Respondent's decision to proceed *pro se*. Judge Hayes again went over his right to counsel and explained that having an attorney would benefit him and proceeding without an attorney would be dangerous since Respondent is not an attorney.

Respondent was also made aware of his right to counsel and the dangers of self-representation through his discussions with Counsel. Counsel explained at the pre-trial hearing that he explained to Respondent his concerns about Respondent representing himself at trial. Counsel also testified at the PCR hearing that he did not have any concerns about Respondent's

competency, advised Respondent about his right to counsel, and discussed the dangers of self-representation.

Accordingly, it is clear that Respondent was made aware of his right to counsel and the dangers of self-representation through the trial judge's many inquiries and, more importantly, through his discussions with Counsel. While the judge's inquiries may have been brief, he made these inquiries at least three times prior to trial. Petitioner contends that the PCR Court erred because there was probative evidence that Respondent was "apprised of his rights by some other source" through his discussions with Counsel. See Bridwell v. State, 306 S.C. 518, 413 S.E.2d 30 (1992).

Additionally, there was no evidence in the record to suggest that Respondent was not competent to understand his rights and proceed *pro se*, as Counsel specifically testified that he never had an issue with Respondent's competency. The PCR Court erred in finding that "[d]uring the PCR hearing, [Respondent] exhibited little understanding of criminal proceedings," as Respondent's understanding at the PCR hearing had no bearing whatsoever on whether Respondent had sufficient background to understand the dangers of self-representation at the time of trial. The PCR Court also erred by giving any consideration to the fact that Respondent testified he was mentally challenged or had an intellectual disability at the time of trial. The PCR Court considered this fact but also acknowledged that the only evidence to support this contention was Respondent's self-serving testimony. Thus, there was no evidence presented outside of the self-serving testimony that Respondent was not competent to understand his rights and proceed *pro se*, and any consideration of this fact would be speculation. Additionally, any finding that Respondent did not understand the criminal procedure because he did not cross

examine witnesses is refuted by the fact that Counsel testified Respondent was preparing cross-examination questions for witnesses but voluntarily "gave up" in the middle of trial.

The PCR Court also erred by misapplying Watts v. State, 347 S.C. 399, 556 S.E.2d 368 (2001). The PCR Court cited Watts, which held a solicitor's testimony that the trial judge "would have warned" the PCR applicant about the dangers of self-representation was insufficient to satisfy the Faretta requirements. The PCR Court appeared to find that this was similar to Counsel's testimony that he would have informed Respondent of the dangers of self-representation. It is clear from the record that Counsel's explanation is not speculative as he testified that he discussed the dangers of self-representation, the possible penalties, trial issues, and issues concerning cross examining the doctors. See App. 230. This is in no way analogous to a solicitor speculating what a judge would have explained to a defendant.

The PCR Court also erred in finding Respondent was not apprised of the dangers of self-representation by some other source. The PCR Court misapplied Bridwell, which held that if the trial judge fails to make a "specific inquiry . . . addressing the disadvantages of proceeding *pro se*, this Court will look to the record to determine whether petitioner had sufficient background or was apprised of his rights by some other source." The PCR Court erred in holding that the record "did not reflect that [Respondent] was made aware of the dangers of self-representation by a source outside [Counsel] or the Trial Judge." App. 257. Petitioner submits the "some other source" described in Bridwell means a source other than the trial judge and does not mean, as the PCR Court found, that it must be a source other than the trial judge and defense counsel. In this case, there is evidence in the record, specifically from Counsel's testimony, that he explained the dangers of self-representation, and the PCR Court erred in finding there must be evidence from "some other source" aside from Counsel's testimony. For the above reasons, there is no evidence

to support the PCR Court's finding that Respondent did not knowingly and intelligently waive his right to counsel. This Court should reverse the PCR Court and affirm Respondent's conviction and sentence.

**II. The post-conviction relief judge erred in finding Respondent satisfied his burden of proving that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to raise the issue that his waiver of counsel was invalid where the issue had no reasonable likelihood of securing reversal on direct appeal.**

**Relevant Facts**

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