STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from YORK County, COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
Alison R. Lee, Circuit Court Judge

Trey Williams,

RESPONDENT,

THE STATE,

APPELLANT,

APPELLATE CASE NO.

2016-001553

RECEIVED

JAN 25 2019

SC Court of Appeals

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

TREY ALEXANDER WILLIAMS
PRO SE LITIGANT

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

(Cite as-399 S.C. 641, 732 S.E.2d 871)

The exchange that took place did not meet even A banal definition of colloquy, and falls far short of the "high level serious discussion" necessary to support the waiver of A defendants constitutional rights. Trial Counsel's Testimony at the PCR hearing does not meet the "Any evidence standard," and did not require the court to ~~confirm~~ Affirm the PCR Judge ruling. The PCR court found that petitioner waived his right to A jury trial, however the only evidence supporting that erroneous determination is trial counsel's testimony. That testimony illustrates A Trial Strategy and decision-making process, incompatible with the demands of this courts waiver jurisprudence. The bare fact that the testimony exist, does not mean that the testimony constitutes evidence of A valid waiver even under deferential standard review. The waiver in this case ~~is not~~ supported by A complete record. The PCR court erred in finding that petitioner made A knowing and voluntary waiver of A sacrosanct right found in both the State and federal constitutions. In this case AT BAR Appellate case No. 2016-001553 See App. 246-262 (PCR order granting PCR) which will show striking similarities. The supreme court held that waivers of such are effective only if made knowingly and voluntarily. *Id.* at 142, 665 S.E. 2d at 607. The court examines the particular facts and circumstances in the case, background, experience and conduct of accused. *Id.* at 143, 665 S.E. 2d at 607. See- *Spoone v. State*, 379 S.C. 138, 665 S.E. 2d 605 (2008).

LEGAL MAIL
MAIL ROOM

141

U.S. v. Coe, 621 F.3d 575, 578-79 (6th Cir 2010) Right to counsel may not be knowingly and intelligently waived when defendant does not understand nature of charges, Statutory Offense, Range of allowable punishments, and possible defense; *Brooks v. McCaughy*, 380 F.3d 1009, 1013 (7th Cir 2004); *Tovar v. Tovar*, 541 U.S. 77, 89 (2004) The Tovar court explained that "the information a defendant must have to waive counsel intelligently will depend... upon the particular facts and circumstances surrounding the case. Ed. at 92 (quoting *Johnson v. Zoebst*, 304 U.S. 458, 464 (1938) Among the case specific factors to be considered are "the defendant's education or sophistication, the complex or easily grasped nature of the charge, and the stage of the proceeding. Ed. at 88; See also *Palkerson v. Ill.* 487 U.S. 285, 299 (1988) (same); *Torres v. U.S.* 140 F.3d 392, 401 (2d Cir 1998) Court should conduct on the record discussion to ensure defendant's aware of risk and ramifications of self representation; *U.S. v. Jones*, 452 F.3d 223, 238-29 (3d Cir 2006) Court must go beyond "SP Interlocking questioning" and specifically warn defendant of dangers of proceeding pro-se, including that he must conduct defense in accordance with Federal Rules of evidence and criminal procedure; *U.S. v. Williams* 691 F.3d 758, 766-67 (6th Cir 2011) Court should follow model inquiry of 13 questions about defendant's familiarity with legal system and charges against defendant, followed by "strong admonishment" that the court recommends against defendant proceeding pro-se; *U.S. v. Todd*, 424 F.3d 525, 531-32 (7th Cir 2005) Court should not just confirm defendant desire to proceed without an attorney, but should also "impress upon... defendant the disadvantages" of proceeding pro-se; See, *U.S. v. Hantzis*, 625 F.3d 525-579-80 (9th Cir 2010) Court must ensure defendant understands nature of charges, possible penalties, and dangers of self representation, so that the record will establish that he knows what he is doing and his choice is made with eyes open.

The Supreme Court has not prescribed any formula or script to be read to a defendant who states that he elects to proceed without counsel." *Tovar*, 541 U.S. at 88. However, circuit courts have developed various lines of question. See *U.S. v. McHard* 362 F.3d 360, 366 (6th Cir 2004) valid waiver because court presented defendant with 12 of 13 questions on model inquiry and complied with essence of last question by reviewing maximum penalty. In this case at bar, the record is void of any questions to the defendant or inquiry into the nature of the offense or maximum penalty. See *U.S. v. Gerwin*, 471 F.3d 197, 198-200 (DC Cir 2006) waiver valid because court engaged in extensive discussions of charges, punishments, procedures, and dangers of self representation with defendant. In this case at bar, again the record is void of any extensive discussions between defendant, counsel, or the courts. Regarding charges, punishments, or procedures that he must comply with. See, *U.S. v. Jones*, 452 F.3d 223, 231-32 (3d Cir 2006) waiver invalid because court failed to identify potential problems of obtaining evidence when proceeding pro-se. Some circuit courts have articulated a three factor test to be used in determining whether a defendant knowingly and intelligently waived the right to counsel. (1) the nature of the charges against him (2) possible penalties and (3) the danger and disadvantage of self representation. The Court must determine that defendant "understands the nature of

The charges, the range of possible punishment, potential defenses, technical problems that may be encountered, and any other facts important to a general understanding of the risks involved (quoting *U.S. v. Pappas*, 302 F.3d 120, 132, 134 (3d Cir 2002)).

Furthermore, because the record reflects the conflict of interest between counsel and client, applicant felt that counsel was being untruthful with him, deliberately misrepresented facts and material evidence, and intentionally withheld discovery evidence favorable to applicant defense. Applicant Request to have this counsel removed, and appointed another counsel, however, he was denied and forced to proceed with counsel, when was forced to work under a conflict of interest. See *Patterson v. El*, 482 U.S. 208, 292 N.4 (1988) If defendant must choose between the right to self representation and poor counsel, the choice of former may be considered involuntary; see, e.g., *Padden v. Maurice*, 424 F.3d 303, 316-318 (3d Cir 2005) involuntary waiver when defendant given choice between unprepared counsel and self representation; *U.S. v. Silkwood*, 893 F.2d 249 (10th Cir 1989) involuntary waiver when trial counsel and court impermissibly forced defendant to choose between self representation and poor counsel by attempting to persuade defendant of appointed counsel's competency instead of conducting a penetrating inquiry into decision to proceed pro-se.

Petitioner asserts that because he was never informed of the court procedures, i.e. objection requirement, cross examination or presentation of evidence, access to evidence, discovery and such action of the court interfered with defendant's self representation, and due process; see, *Oses v. Moss*, 961 F.2d 985-87 (1st Cir 1992) defendant's right to proceed pro-se violated when judge excluded defendant from bench or lobby conference during trial, gaged and ridiculed defendant in front of jury, commented sarcastically about defendant defense, and failed to curb prosecutor's rhetorical comments. Moreover, if the state interferes with a defendant's self representation, due process may be violated; see, *Tate v. Silcock*, 963 F.2d 20, 26 (2d Cir 1992) removal to determine whether due process violated by defendant's confinement and administrative segregation during 10 month period between arraignment and trial because no opportunity to prepare own defense. See, *Milton v. Morris*, 767 F.2d 1443, 1446-47 (9th Cir 1985) due process violated when state unjustifiably hindered self-representation by denying meaningful access to relevant research materials. *Ind. v. Edwards*, 554 U.S. 164-173-75 (2008) finding schizophrenic defendant unfit to conduct pro se defense.

Petitioner asserts that the bold listed case law was disregarded by the trial court in this case at law, see, *U.S. v. Arthurum*, 343 F.3d 712, 718 (5th Cir 2003) waiver knowing and intelligent because defendant signed waiver form, court explained form to defendant and court advised defendant of advantages and disadvantages. Also, see *The South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense, Division of Appellate defense*, letter dated _____

U.S. v. Hall, 610 F.3d 727, 741 (2d Cir 2010) Knowing intelligent court conducted (Forette inquiry); however in this case at bar, see U.S. v. Jones, 452 F.3d 223, 232-34 (3d Cir 2006) waiver not knowing and intelligent because court failed to advise defendant of challenges to self-representation or of potential punishment; Foster v. Collins, 253 F.3d 244, 250 (6th Cir 2001) Waiver can not be voluntary because court did not make defendant aware of dangers and disadvantages of self-representation or fallback courts protective role when defendant stated he was unprepared for trial and that indictment was complex; Shafiq v. Bowersov, 329 F.3d 637, 647-48 (8th Cir 2003) court did not comprehensively examine defendant or adequately warn him of dangers

Furthermore, based on petitioner's education/mental level, the trial court abused its discretion by accepting petitioner's request to proceed pro-se, see, U.S. v. Puenett, 910 F.2d 51, 55 (2d Cir 1990) defendant motion to proceed pro-se properly denied because "district court is not obliged to accept every defendant's invocation of the right to self-representation; U.S. v. Brunkoff, 613 F.3d 358, 372-74 (3d Cir 2010) defendant motion to proceed pro-se properly denied because request was untimely; U.S. v. Bush, 404 F.3d 263, 272 (4th Cir 2005) denial because purpose of request was to delay and manipulate trial; U.S. v. Caccadine, 621 F.3d 573, 578-79 (6th Cir 2010) denial because defendant not competent to represent himself; Brooks v. Ketchum, 358 F.3d 1009, 1010 (7th Cir 2004) denial because defendant deemed incompetent; U.S. v. Edelman, 458 F.3d 791, 808-09 (8th Cir 2006) denial defendant's request because it was not timely; U.S. v. Kaczinski, 239 F.3d 1106, 1117 (9th Cir 2001) denial defendant request because made tactically for dilatory purposes; U.S. v. Smith, 413 F.3d 1253, 1281 (10th Cir 2005) denial because defendant not capable of representing himself, 6 days before trial; See U.S. v. Frazier-El, 204 F.3d 553, 562 (4th Cir 2000) denial because untimely and tactic for delay; U.S. v. Edelman, 458 F.3d 791, 808-09 (8th Cir 2006) denial as untimely because made 5 days before start of trial

Petitioner has attempted thru "Judicial Notice of adjudicative Acts" and this proposed order granting PER Relief, to comply with the exhaustion requirements; Davis v. Steack, 270 F.3d 111, 123 (2d Cir 2001) exhaustion requirement satisfied because applicant fairly presented due process violations by citing with specificity to US Const in state court brief; Nara v. Frank, 488 F.3d 187, 199 (3d Cir 2007); Weeks v. Hugelton, 176 F.3d 249, 262 (4th Cir 1999) despite fact that highest courts decisions did not discuss Federal Constitutional issues aff'd, 528 U.S. 225 (2000); Taylor v. Cain, 545 F.3d 307, 333-34 (5th Cir 2008) satisfied despite petitioner's failure to frame claim in Constitutional terms because cited in state court filings; Quinter v. Tysockiewicz, 225 F.3d 313, 315 (6th Cir 2001) satisfied because petitioner identified Constitutional violations during state court proceedings; Boyko v. Parke, 259 F.3d 781, 789 (7th Cir 2001); Hill v. Lockhart, 38 F.3d 832, 834-35 (8th Cir 1994); Williams v. Jones, 571 F.3d 1086, 1089 (10th Cir 2009); Cole v. Johnson, 488 F.3d 1364, 1369 (11th Cir 2007) (Same)

ARGUMENT II.

Whether the post conviction Relief Judge erred in finding respondent satisfied his burden of proving that his Appellate Counsel was Ineffective for failing to Raise the issue that his waiver of counsel was Invalid where respondent made no objection to proceeding pro se leaving the issue unpreserved for appellate Review.

The issue that Direct appeal attorney Lanel C. Durant addressed was not objected to at trial and her initial Brief resulted in A substantial unreasonable Application of clearly established Law as determined by the Supreme court of the United States and her strategy and decision making process was based on A unreasonable determination of facts in light of the evidence in the trial transcript proceeding which resulted in her litigation being substantially diverse from relevant Supreme court precedent. Appellate counseled litigated that Mr. Williams knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily waived counsel and jury trial rights and that the trial judge advised defendant the dangers and disadvantages of proceeding pro se. Furthermore Appellate Counsel neglected to state that the trial judge abused discretion in any pre trial or court phase. Appellate Counsel's initial Brief was objectively unreasonable in its totality. See App. 278-280. See App. 270-277.

3) Appellate Counsel was ineffective, in failing to raise meritorious issues of involuntariness, unwilling and unintelligent waiver of trial counsel, waiver of jury trial, and ineffective assistance of counsel claim.

A) Appellate Counsel failed to adequately raise abuse of discretion on the trial court, for the above mentioned issues.

Petitioner is alleging that appellate counsel's representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different. Therefore, because of counsel's unreasonable standard of representation, petitioner was severely prejudiced because petitioner was denied a chance to raise meritorious issues raised above. See, *Smith v. Robbins*, 528 U.S. 259, 120 S.Ct. 794. The highest court have stated; Counsel, however, can also deprive petitioner of the right to effective assistance, simply by failing to render adequate legal assistance. See, *Cuyler v. Sullivan*, 446 U.S. at 344, 100 S.Ct. at 1716. It also stated if counsel does not conduct a substantial investigation into each of several plausible lines of defense, assistance may nonetheless be ineffective, counsel's errors resulted in actual actual and substantial disadvantage to the course of petitioner's defense. See, *Lombard v. Lynaugh*, 868 F.2d 1475, held counsel ineffective for failing to raise here if when New-Frivolous issues existed for appeal.

Petitioner contends that the record does not contain any probative evidence to support the notion that the waiver was knowingly and intelligently made, or that stand by counsel was effective in protecting petitioner's Constitutional Rights. Counsel appointed to represent an indigent appellate, ordinarily should consult with his client at least once to ascertain his clients desires with regards to the alleged trial errors which the appellant wishes to press, because counsel has a duty to press arguments initiated by his client which may arguably be supported even though counsel does not personally espouse them. Counsel must act in the role of an active advocate in behalf of his clients appeals to the best of their ability. Fundamental fairness entitled indigent defendant to an adequate opportunity to present their claims fairly within the adversary system. See, *AKE v. Oklahoma*, 470 U.S. 68. When a claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel is based upon failure to raise viable issues, the courts must examine the record to determine whether appellate counsel failed to present significant and obvious issues on appeal. See, *Gray v. Greer*, 800 F.2d 644, 646. Generally, the presumption of effective assistance of counsel will be overcome when the alleged ignored issues are clearly strong or meritorious issues. Conversely, an appellate advocate may deliver deficient performance and prejudice a defendant by omitting a clearly strong issue, even though counsel may have presented strong but unsuccessful claims on appeal. See, *Page v. U.S* 884 F.2d 300, 302; *Maire v. Wainwright*, 811 F.2d 1430, 1438; *U.S. v. Alerre*, 430 F.2d 681; *U.S. v. Addison*, 2001 WL 409453.

has held under duress, perjured testimony or involuntary waiver obtained by trickery or coercion and when a defendant has been inadequately represented by counsel. It is never to late for courts in Habeas Corpus proceeding to look straight through procedural smoke screens in order to prevent forfeitures of life or liberty in flagrant defiance of the Constitution. It is well settled that appellate procedural defaults should not foreclose Habeas Corpus Review of meritorious Constitutional claims. This issue has been properly raised, and likewise, preserved, this court should rule accordingly. Per counsel must file a SCRP. Rule 59(a) or (E) to assure that all issues raised are ruled on for appellate review.

Issue Presented

(3) Ineffective Assistance of Appellate Counsel

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